


DRAFT MINUTES
HAYS AREA BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
COMMISSION CHAMBERS IN CITY HALL
OCTOBER 13, 2021

1. CALL TO ORDER: The Hays Area Board of Zoning Appeals met for the regularly
scheduled meeting on Wednesday, October 13, 2021, at 8:15 a.m. in the
Commission Chambers at City Hall. Lou Caplan declared a quorum was present and
called the meeting to order.

Roll Call:
Present. Lou Caplan, Jerry Sonntag, Rich Sieker, Russell Koenigsman & Brian
Garrett.

City Staff in attendance: Jesse Rohr, Director of Public Works, Curtis Deines,
Superintendent of Planning, Inspection, and Enforcement, Toby Dougherty, City
Manager, Collin Bielser, Assistant City Manager, Alex McCune, Inspector.

2. CONSENT AGENDA:

A. MINUTES: Jerry Sonntag moved; Russell Koenigsman seconded the motion to
approve the minutes as submitted from the September 8, 2021, meeting.

Vote: AYES:
Lou Caplan, Jerry Sonntag, Rich Sieker, Russell Koenigsman & Brian Garrett.

3. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS:

A. Public Hearing for Wes Rathbun of Rathbun Enterprises, LLC for a variance
request to increase the allowed area of painted wall signage from 32 sq. ft. to 75
sq. ft., an increase of 43 sq. ft. on the building at 109 W. 7" St, Hays, Kansas.

Curtis Deines provided a PowerPoint presentation of the applicant’s request for a
variance to increase the allowed area of painted wall signage from the allowed 32
sg. ft. to 75 sq. ft., an increase of 43 sq. ft., at 109 W. 7" Street.

He explained the permanent wall sign regulation, 7.2.201B within the C-3 zoning
district, that applies to this case. The regulation allows an unlimited number of
signs with an aggregate area of up to 32 square feet. One of the proposed signs
will be included as part of a mural on the south side of the building. He provided a
picture of the proposed sign.

This is a large building that was built in 1953. It is not listed in the Chestnut
Historical District, although it is required to follow the limited sign regulations of
the “C-3” Zoning District. This building does not follow the same characteristics as
the main street buildings. It has a large area with multiple walls that could be used
for signage.



Staff is currently working on taking a proposal forward to change the wall sign
regulations, particularly the painted wall signs, to possibly make them unlimited in
size.

Curtis Deines explained the five statutory requirements associated with this case.
History: He explained two similar cases that were granted a sign variance.

He provided the options and provided a recommended action to approve as
requested.

Brian Garrett asked if they were looking at the two west signs. Curtis Deines
answered that in the C-3 zoning district, it is an aggregate of the total wall signs
combined.

Brian Garrett asked if the tower sign counted towards the aggregate total. Curtis
Deines answered that it would not since it is not a wall sign.

Brian Garrett asked if the sign on the east wall counted towards the aggregate
total. Curtis Deines answered that would be part of the square footage of wall
signage.

Wes Rathbun, applicant, answered that the sign would be taken down that is on
the east side patio.

Russell Koenigsman asked if all three signs would be painted on. Curtis Deines
answered that all three signs would be painted on. There is no structure sign.

Motion:

Brian Garrett moved; Rich Sieker seconded the motion to approve the variance to
increase the allowed area of painted wall signage from 32 sq. ft. to 75 sq. ft., an
increase of 43 sq. ft. at 109 W. 7" Street, Hays, KS based on the consideration it
does satisfy the five statutory requirements.

Vote: AYES:
Lou Caplan, Jerry Sonntag, Rich Sieker, Russell Koenigsman & Brian Garrett

B. Public Hearing for Thomas & Christine Wasinger for a 7-foot variance to
reduce the west side yard building setback from the required 7 feet to O feet for a
carport at 302 E. 24" Street, Hays, Kansas.

Curtis Deines provided a PowerPoint presentation of the applicant’s request for a
7-foot variance to reduce the west side yard building setback of a residential
property from 7 feet to O feet for a lean-to-structure (carport) that is already
constructed onto the residence at 302 E. 24" Street. The applicant was not aware
of the permitting requirement before the structure was built without a permit. The
applicant is requesting a variance, hoping to keep the structure.

Staff is not in favor of the 0-foot setback request for the structure.

2



He provided the specific dimensions that had been requested by Jerry Sonntag at
the last meeting. From the property line to the home is 11.9 feet.

He showed a picture of the structure. The structure is open to the west with
supporting columns placed on the property line.

The lot size is a 50’ by 125’ lot that is common in this neighborhood. The house
does not have a garage.

The application referred to medical conditions that limit the applicant’'s mobility.
The lean-to allows the applicant to go a short distance and protect the vehicle
from ice and snow for access.

Curtis Deines explained the five statutory requirements associated with this case.

History: Since 2017, there have been 6 cases to reduce the side yard building
setback. A majority have been approved for 3 feet or more from the property line
depending on circumstances. There have been no variances approved with a
zero setback.

He stated that the neighbors from the east and west provided their support to
allow the structure.

He provided a copy of an e-mail to the Board from the neighbors to the east,
Richard & Beckie Holmes at 304 E. 24t St.

He provided the options and recommended action by staff not to approve the
variance request.

Lou Caplan asked for any questions. He noted that it could be approved with
conditions and/or requirements.

Russell Koenigsman stated that his concern would be how it would affect future
neighbors’ property. Lou Caplan suggested a condition that the carport be
removed once the current occupants no longer reside there.

Curtis Deines explained that they had a previous case that had conditions put on
the property to remove the carport after the occupant no longer resides in the
home or a change of ownership otherwise.

Russell Koenigsman asked if anyone had a concern about fire issues to the
neighbor's house. He said, sure it is fine now, but if something happens, then
what.

Alan Gabel, property owner to the west (300 E 24", stated that he has no
problem with the location of the carport. He had given them verbal permission
before they started on it. The only conditions he has is they put a gutter on that
side as they have had water in the basement since then. His wife asked that they
not store anything outside there.



Russell Koenigsman asked if there was any way to get it off the property line.
Curtis Deines answered that there is no way as it would not be wide enough for
the vehicle. If it is much less than 12 feet, it not wide enough to open the doors to
get out of a vehicle.

Russell Koenigsman stated that there would be no way to get the vehicle in a
smaller area.

Brian Garrett asked how the dimensions of 11 feet 9 inches were measured.
Curtis Deines answered that it was measured from the house to the outside of the
pole. There is no overhang on it.

Brian Garrett asked Alan Gabel if he had a window well on that side. Alan Gabel
answered that he has two escape windows on that side.

Brian Garrett asked if a contractor had put this up. Curtis Deines answered that it
was not a contractor that put it up.

Curtis Deines stated that if the variance would be approved, they would have to
inspect the structure to be sure it would meet all the building code requirements.

Failed Motion:

Brian Garrett moved to not approve the variance for the zero setback for this
property at 302 E. 24" Street, Hays, KS based on the consideration it does not
meet the five statutory requirements.

The motion failed for lack of a second.

Jerry Sonntag asked if there were any openings along the wall. Curtis Deines
answered that there were no openings along the wall.

Russell Koenigsman noted that the conditions be that it be torn down when the
occupants move or transfer ownership of the property.

Lou Caplan entertained another motion.

Motion:

Russell Koenigsman moved, Jerry Sonntag seconded the motion to grant the
seven-foot variance to reduce the west side yard variance from seven feet to zero
feet for the existing carport based on the condition that it be removed when the
current owner or tenant occupants move or transfer ownership of the property
located at 302 E. 24™ Street, Hays, KS. Jerry Sonntag added that guttering is to
be installed on the outside edge of the west side and that it is not to be closed in.
Russell Koenigsman agreed to the added conditions.

For clarification Curtis Deines repeated the conditions to the Board.

Vote: AYES:
Lou Caplan, Jerry Sonntag, Rich Sieker, Russell Koenigsman

4
























14 ft from property

NC.2 Street
Side
Set back

2o 11

platted



cdeines
Rectangle

cdeines
Polygonal Line

cdeines
Rectangle

cdeines
Line

cdeines
Typewritten Text
7 ft

cdeines
Typewritten Text
6 ft

cdeines
Line

cdeines
Line

cdeines
Typewritten Text
14 ft from property line

cdeines
Typewritten Text
25 ft platted setback

cdeines
Line

cdeines
Typewritten Text
NC.2 Street Side
Set back


West Central Hays

2721 Walnut



cdeines
North Arrow

cdeines
North Arrow

cdeines
Rectangle

cdeines
Typewritten Text
West Central Hays

cdeines
Typewritten Text
2721 Walnut


Hillcrest Third Addition Plat

35 ft front platted
Setback

NC.2 Zoning District

NC.2

N

2721
Walnut

yZ

25 ft platted
/ setback



cdeines
North Arrow

cdeines
North Arrow

cdeines
Rectangle

cdeines
Callout
25 ft platted setback

cdeines
Callout
35 ft front platted Setback

cdeines
Rectangle

cdeines
Typewritten Text
NC.2 

cdeines
Typewritten Text
Hillcrest Third Addition Plat

cdeines
Typewritten Text
NC.2 Zoning District

cdeines
Typewritten Text
2721 
Walnut

cdeines
Line

cdeines
Line


Looking South at 2721



cdeines
Typewritten Text
Looking South at 2721 Walnut

cdeines
Line

cdeines
Typewritten Text
11 ft north of fence 
is requested variance

cdeines
Line




cdeines
Line




